
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 

GENERAL MEETING 
PACKET for THE 

PUBLIC 
 

April 14th, 2014 



Agenda 
 

1.  Call To Order 
2.  Roll Call 
3. Reading and Approval of Minutes:  
   A. March 10th, 2014 General Meeting 
4.  Mayor’s Request for Agenda Changes:    
5. Committee Reports: 
   A. Beach Committee 
   B. Library Committee 
   C. GVFD 
6.  Public Comment on Non-agenda Items Only 
7. Consent Agenda:   
 A. Publish FY14-19NCO A Non-code Ordinance for the 

City of Gustavus Providing for the Amendment of the Ad-
ministrative Budget for Fiscal Year 2014 

 B. Publish FY14-20NCO A Non-code Ordinance for the 
City of Gustavus Providing for the Amendment of the Li-
brary Budget for Fiscal Year 2014 

 C. Publish FY14-21NCO A Non-code Ordinance for the 
City of Gustavus Providing for the Amendment of the City 
Held Accounts in Fiscal Year 2014 

 D. Approve Lou Cacioppo for Roads Committee 
 E. Approve Colleen Stansbury for Marine Facilities 

Committee 
 F. Approve Sean Mattson for Roads Committee 
8. Ordinance for Publication: 
9. Ordinance for Public Hearing:   
   A. FY14-12 An Ordinance for the City of Gustavus          
     providing for the Amendment of City Ordinance 6.02 Fire   
     Department 
   B. FY14-13 An Ordinance for the City of Gustavus    
     Providing for the Amendment of City Ordinance 2.20.100  
     Vacancies 
 C. FY14-14NCO A Non-code Ordinance For the City of 

Gustavus Providing For the Amendment of the Marine 
Facilities Budget For Fiscal Year 2014 

   D. FY14-15 An Ordinance for the City of Gustavus  
   Adopting a Major Revision for Title 4.17 Contracts and 
   Purchasing  

  
 

Page 1 of 2 

 
GUSTAVUS CITY COUNCIL 

GENERAL MEETING 
APRIL 14TH,  2014 

7:00 P.M.  C ITY HALL 

 
Mayor: 
Sandi Marchbanks 

mayor@gustavus-ak.gov 
Term Expires 2014 

 
Vice Mayor:  

Lori Trummer 
lori.trummer@gustavus-ak.gov 

Term Expires 2016 
 

Morgan DeBoer 

Council Member 
morgan.deboer@gustavus-ak.gov 

Term Expires 2015 
 

Jeff Irwin 
Council Member 

jeff.irwin@gustavus-ak.gov 
Term Expires 2016 

 
Tim Sunday 

Council Member  

tim.sunday@gustavus-ak.gov 
Term Expires 2015 

 
Seat D - Vacant 

Term Expires 2014 
 

Seat G- Vacant 
Term Expires 2015 

 
Noël Farevaag 

City Clerk/Treasurer 

 
Michael Petty 

Deputy City Clerk 
 

 



   E. FY14-16NCO A Non-Code Ordinance for the City of       
   Gustavus Providing for the Amendment of the  
   Administrative Budget for Fiscal Year 2014 

     F. FY14-17 An Ordinance for the City of Gustavus  
     Providing for the Amendment of City Ordinance 6.01 
     Gustavus Public Library 

10. Resolutions: 
     A. 2014-17 A Resolution by the Gustavus City  
     Council By-Passing the Competitive Bid Process at     
       the Request of the Gustavus Road Maintenance  
     Committee 
     B. 2014-18 A Resolution Certifying the Annual  
     Financial Statement of Revenues and Authorized  
     Expenditures for the Year ending June 30th, 2013. 
11. Policy and Procedures for Publication: 
12. Policy and Procedures for Public Hearing:   
13. Unfinished Business:   
14. New Business 
 A. Approve Invitation to Bid—Mountain View Drainage 

Fish Passage Improvement Project—Spruce Lane Bridge 
15. Staff Reports 
16. City Council Reports 
 A. Mayor’s Report  
      B. City Clerk Report   
17. City Council Questions and Comments  
18. Public Comments on Non-Agenda Items  
19. Executive Session 
20. Adjournment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 

 
GUSTAVUS CITY COUNCIL 

GENERAL MEETING 
APRIL 14TH,  2014 

7:00 P.M.  C ITY HALL 

 
Mayor: 
Sandi Marchbanks 

mayor@gustavus-ak.gov 
Term Expires 2014 

 
Vice Mayor:  

Lori Trummer 
lori.trummer@gustavus-ak.gov 

Term Expires 2016 
 

Morgan DeBoer 

Council Member 
morgan.deboer@gustavus-ak.gov 

Term Expires 2015 
 

Jeff Irwin 
Council Member 

jeff.irwin@gustavus-ak.gov 
Term Expires 2016 

 
Tim Sunday 

Council Member  

tim.sunday@gustavus-ak.gov 
Term Expires 2015 

 
Seat D - Vacant 

Term Expires 2014 
 

Seat G- Vacant 
Term Expires 2015 

 
Noël Farevaag 

City Clerk/Treasurer 

 
Michael Petty 

Deputy City Clerk 
 

 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Item No. 7   Consent Agenda 
A. Publish FY14-19NCO A Non-Code Ordinance for the City of 
Gustavus Providing for the Amendment of the Administrative 
Budget for Fiscal Year 2014 
 

CITY OF GUSTAVUS, ALASKA 
Ordinance No. FY14-19NCO 

 

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF GUSTAVUS PROVIDING FOR THE AMENDMENT OF 
THE ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GUSTAVUS CITY COUNCIL AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Classification. This is a Non-Code Ordinance 

Section 2. For the Fiscal Year of 2014 estimated income and expenditures have changed 
from the estimates in the approved budget. 

Section 3.  For the current fiscal year the budget is amended to reflect the changed 
estimates as follows: 

  

Budget Category     Amounts 

     Original Budget    Amended Budget Change 

EXPENSE 

Administrative Costs   $   5,000.00  $ 38,922.50           $ 33,922.50  

*Due to item category changes, Admin costs now includes Audit & Fish Box Tax Sticker Printing  

Audit      $ 32,957.50  $          0.00         <$ 32,957.50> 

Bank Charges    $          0.00  $      100.00  $     100.00 

Building    $          0.00  $      285.00  $     285.00    

*Due to item category changes, Building now includes Building: Insurance for property insurance expenses 

Fish Box Tax Sticker Printing $    1,350.00  $          0.00         <$   1350.00> 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Equipment    $    6,500.00  $ 11,000.00  $  4,500.00 

*Major repair on Canon printer  

 

Insurance    $    5,000.00  $ 0.00                   <$  5,000.00> 

*Due to item category changes, Insurance expenses are now categorized as Building: insurance and Payroll expenses: workers comp  

Telephone, Internet, Broadband $ 3,000.00  $ 3,500.00  $     500.00 

 

Total Change in Expense                  $        0.00 

 

Section 4. The budget is hereby amended as indicated and any portion of the approved 
budget inconsistent with this amendment is repealed.  

Section 5. Effective Date.  This ordinance becomes effective upon its adoption by the 
Gustavus City Council. 

DATE INTRODUCED: April 14, 2014 

DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING: May 12, 2014 

  

PASSED and APPROVED by the Gustavus City Council this _____ day of ___________, 2014. 

 

 

______________________________________       _______________________________________         
Sandi Marchbanks, Mayor     Attest: Noël Farevaag, City Clerk/Treasurer  
 

 

 

 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

B. Publish FY14-20NCO A Non-Code Ordinance for the City of 
Gustavus Providing for the Amendment of the Library Budget for 
Fiscal Year 2014 

 CITY OF GUSTAVUS, ALASKA 
Ordinance No. FY14-20NCO 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF GUSTAVUS PROVIDING FOR THE AMENDMENT OF 

THE LIBRARY BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GUSTAVUS CITY COUNCIL AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Classification. This is a Non-Code Ordinance 

Section 2. For the Fiscal Year of 2014 estimated income and expenditures have changed 
from the estimates in the approved budget. 

Section 3.  For the current fiscal year the budget is amended to reflect the changed 
estimates as follows: 

Budget Category     Amounts 

     Original Budget    Amended Budget Change 

INCOME 

Fundraising    $1,943.50  $2,443.50  $  500.00  

Brick Sales exceeded expectations  

Library Income   $1,350.00  $1,719.87  $  369.87  

General Income exceeded expectations  

 
Total Change in Income                   $  869.87 

 

EXPENSE 

Building: Insurance   $      0.00  $1,579.16  $1,579.16 

“Insurance” budget category changed to “Building: Insurance”   



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Dues/Fees     $   972.00  $4,113.00  $3,141.00 

Leased books moved from Library Materials.  

 

Equipment     $   150.00  $ 532.50  $  382.50 

Insurance     $1,805.95  $     0.00          <$1,805.95> 

“Insurance” budget category changed to “Building: Insurance” and “Payroll Expenses: Workers Comp”   

Library Materials:Books  $ 6448.55  $ 3,683.67          <$2,764.88> 

Leased books moved into dues and fees  

Payroll Expense   $36,805.00           $37,143.04          $    338.04  

“Insurance” budget category changed to “Payroll Expenses: Workers Comp”   

 

 

Total Change in Expense                  $  869.87 

 

Section 4. The budget is hereby amended as indicated and any portion of the approved 
budget inconsistent with this amendment is repealed. 

  

Section 5. Effective Date.  This ordinance becomes effective upon its adoption by the 
Gustavus City Council. 

 

DATE INTRODUCED: April 14, 2014 

DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING: May 12, 2014  

PASSED and APPROVED by the Gustavus City Council this _____ day of ___________, 2014. 

 

________________________________          _______________________________________        
Sandi Marchbanks, Mayor          Attest: Noël Farevaag, City Clerk/Treasurer  



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

C. Publish FY14-21NCO A Non-Code Ordinance for the City of 
Gustavus Providing for the Amendment of the City Held Accounts in 
Fiscal Year 2014 

CITY OF GUSTAVUS, ALASKA 
Ordinance No. FY14-21NCO 

 

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF GUSTAVUS PROVIDING FOR THE AMENDMENT OF 
THE CITY HELD ACCOUNTS IN FISCAL YEAR 2014 

 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE GUSTAVUS CITY COUNCIL AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. Classification. This is a Non-Code Ordinance 
 

Section 2. In Fiscal Year 2014 the following City held account balance transfers to be 
made for reasons stated in each transfer, with NCO’s and Resolutions notated 
as appropriate.  

 

Section 3.  The budget is amended to reflect the changed estimates as follows; 
  

   
       Amounts 
 

     Account Balance*    Amended balance  Change 
     *Approximate, this is a dynamic value. 

ACCOUNTS 
 
FNBA Savings account  $20,551.66  $ 0.00   <$  20.551.66> 
*Account closure requested, transferred to AMLIP Admin account 

 

AMLIP – Admin    $20,000.00  $ 40,551.66    $  20,551.66 
*Balance from FNBA savings transferred to AMLIP Admin account 

 

FNBA Checking account  $ 737,812.32 $ 655,812.32 <$  82,000.00> 
* Reference NCO FY14-16 and Resolutions 2014-1 & 2008-06, transferred to AMLIP Road Maintenance account 

 

AMLIP – Road Maintenance $ 310,916.63 $ 82,000.00    $ 392,916.63 
*Transferred from FNBA checking account 

 

Alaska Pacific Bank, GCN account $ 179,975.17 $ 145,974.31  <$  34,000.86> 
* Check #104 for FY13 GCN expenses paid by FBNA Checking account 
 

 Alaska Pacific Bank, GCN account $ 145,974.31 $ 121,470.24 <$  24,504.07> 
* Check #103 for FY14 GCN expenses paid by FBNA Checking account 

 

FNBA Checking Account  $ 655,812.32 $ 714,317.25   $  58,504.93 
*Check #’s 103 & 104 Transferred from APB GCN account  

 

FNBA Checking Account  $ 714,317.25 $ 664,317.25   $  50,000.00 
* Reference Resolutions 2014-01 & 2014-10, transferred to AMLIP Beach account  

 

 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

AMLIP Beach account  $ 0.00   $ 50,000.00    $  50,000.00 
*Transferred from FNBA checking account 

 
Total Change in Account Balances                   $  0.00 
 

 
Section 4. The City Held accounts are hereby amended as indicated. 
  
Section 5. Effective Date.  This ordinance becomes effective upon its adoption by the 

Gustavus City Council. 
 
 
DATE INTRODUCED: April 14, 2014 
DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING: May 12, 2014 

  
PASSED and APPROVED by the Gustavus City Council this _____ day of ___________, 2014. 

 
 

______________________________________       _______________________________________         
Sandi Marchbanks, Mayor     Attest: Noël Farevaag, City Clerk/Treasurer  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

D. Approve Lou Cacioppo for Roads Committee 

 
 

[See Attached Application on Next Page] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 
 
 

 

 
 

 

E. Approve Colleen Stansbury for Marine Facilities Committee 
 
 

[See Attached Application on Next Page] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 
 
 

 

 
 

 

F. Approve Sean Mattson for Roads Committee 
 
 

[See Attached Application on Next Page] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Item No. 9   Ordinance for Public Hearing 
A. FY14-12 An Ordinance for the City of Gustavus Providing for the 
Amendment of City Ordinance 6.02 Fire Department 
 

CITY OF GUSTAVUS 

ORDINANCE NO. FY14-12 

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF GUSTAVUS PROVIDING FOR THE AMENDMENT OF 
CITY ORDINANCE 6.02 FIRE DEPARTMENT 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GUSTAVUS CITY COUNCIL AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Classification. This ordinance is of general and permanent nature and shall 
become a part of the City of Gustavus Municipal Code. 

Section 2.     Severability.  If any provisions of this ordinance or any application thereof to 
any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and 
its application to other persons, or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

Section 3. Enactment. Now therefore, it is enacted by the Gustavus City Council that Title 
6.02 Fire Department be amended as follows: Bold and italicized items are 
additions. 

 
Chapter 6.02 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
And 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
Sections: 
 
6.02.010  Unchanged 
6.02.020  Unchanged 
6.02.030  Unchanged 
6.02.040  Unchanged 
6.02.050  Unchanged 
6.02.060  Authorization 
6.02.070  Charges 
 
6.02.060  Authorization. 
 The fire department of the city is authorized to operate and maintain an 
 ambulance for the purpose of providing emergency transportation to hose 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

individuals in need of emergency medical care. Said ambulance shall be considered 
an authorized emergency vehicle. 
 
6.02.070  Charges. 
 The charges for use of, and the services provided by each city ambulance  shall 
 be set forth in resolution by the Gustavus City Council. It is the responsibility of 
 the patient or individual transported to pay the charges for ambulance service 
 provided by the city. 
 (a) Separated charges shall be established for each of the following   
  Acuity Levels: 
  (1) Acuity I. Basic Life Support. No alteration of level of    
   consciousness. All vital parameters are stable. No impending   
   deterioration. This acuity will be used for airport transports   
   unless the patient meets the requirements of a higher acuity   
   level. 
  (2) Acuity II. Basic Life Support – Emergency.  Services occurring  
   after a sudden onset of a medical condition manifesting   
   itself by symptoms of sufficient severity that the absence of   
   immediate medical attention could reasonably be expected to  
   result in: placing the individual’s health in serious jeopardy;  
   impairment of body functions; or serious dysfunction to any   
   bodily organ or part. No ALS procedures. 
  (3) Acuity III. Advanced Life Support Level 1. The provision of an  
   assessment by an ALS provider or the provision of one or   
   more ALS interventions. An ALS provider is a provider    
   trained to at least EMT 2 level. ALS intervention is a    
   procedure beyond the scope of an EMT Basic. 
  (4) Acuity IV. Advanced Life Support Level 1. Emergency.    
   Service, as specified above, occurring after a sudden onset of  
   a medical condition manifesting itself by symptoms of    
   sufficient severity that the absence of immediate medical   
   attention could reasonably be expected to result in: placing   
   the individual’s health in serious jeopardy; impairment of   
   body functions; or serious dysfunction of any bodily organ or  
   part. 
  (5) Acuity V. Critical Care.  A situation where patient care    
   involves the potential need for, or use of, advanced life   
   saving procedures and/or medications. 
    
 (b) If more than one patient is transported, mileage or delay charges   
  only shall be apportioned between them equally. Each patient shall  
  be individually responsible for the un-shared charges related to his  
  or her Acuity Level.  
  
 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Section 4.   Effective Date. This ordinance become effective upon its adoption by the 
Gustavus City Council 

Date Introduced:  March 10, 2014 

Date of Public Hearing: April 14, 2014 

PASSED and APPROVED by the Gustavus City Council this _____ day of ___________________, 
2014 

 

_________________________________________   

Sandi Marchbanks, Mayor      

 

_________________________________________ 

Noël Farevaag, City Clerk/Treasurer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

B. FY14-13 An Ordinance for the City of Gustavus Providing for the 
Amendment of City Ordinance 2.20.100 Vacancies 
 

City of Gustavus, Alaska 
Ordinance No. FY14-13 

 

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF GUSTAVUS PROVIDING FOR THE 
AMENDMENT OF CITY ORDINANCE 2.20.100 VACANCIES 

 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GUSTAVUS CITY COUNCIL AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. Classification. This ordinance is of general and permanent nature and shall 
become a part of the City of Gustavus Municipal Code. 

Section 2.     Severability.  If any provisions of this ordinance or any application thereof to 
any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and 
its application to other persons, or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

Section 3. Enactment. Now therefore, it is enacted by the Gustavus City    
  Council that Title 2 Section 2.20.100 (f) be amended as follows: Bold   
  and italicized items are additions, and strikethroughs are deletions. 

 

Section 2.20.100 Vacancies. 

An elected city office is vacated under the following conditions. The council 
shall declare an office vacant when the person elected:  

(a) Fails to qualify or take office within thirty (30) days after election   
  or appointment; or  
(b) Is physically absent from the city for a ninety-day period, unless   
  excused by the council; or  
(c) Resigns and the resignation is accepted; or  
(d) Is physically or mentally unable to perform the duties of office; or 
(e) Is removed from office by recall as prescribed by AS 29.26.240—  
  29.26.360; or 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

(f) Is unexcused from any five (5) meetings in a calendar year   
  including, but not limited to work sessions, and regular or   
  special meetings. 

Misses three (3) consecutive regular meetings unless excused by the 
council; or 

(g) Is convicted of a felony or of an offense involving a violation of his   
  or her oath of office.  
(h) If a vacancy occurs on the city council, the remaining members   
  within ninety (90) days of the vacancy, and subject to AS    
  29.20.180, appoint a qualified candidate (CoG [Section] 5.10.090)   
  to fill the vacancy in accordance with the procedures established   
  in Section 2.20.110. The person appointed to fill the vacancy shall  
  serve until the next regular election and until a successor is   
  elected and has qualified for the vacated council seat. The elected   
  successor shall serve the remainder of the term of the vacated   
  council seat. 

 

Section 4.   Effective Date. This ordinance become effective upon its adoption by the 
Gustavus City Council 

Date Introduced:  March 10, 2014 

Date of Public Hearing: April 14, 2014 

PASSED and APPROVED by the Gustavus City Council this _____ day of ___________________, 
2014 

 

_________________________________________ 

Sandi Marchbanks, Mayor      

 

_________________________________________ 

Noël Farevaag, City Clerk/Treasurer 

 

http://library.municode.com/HTML/15216/level3/COORGUAL_TIT5EL_CH5.10CIEL.html#COORGUAL_TIT5EL_CH5.10CIEL_S5.10.090QUCO
http://library.municode.com/HTML/15216/level3/COORGUAL_TIT2AD_CH2.20CICO.html#COORGUAL_TIT2AD_CH2.20CICO_S2.20.110FIVA


 
 
 

 

 
 

 

C. FY14-14NCO A Non-Code Ordinance for the City of Gustavus 
Providing for the Amendment of the Marine Facilities Budget for 
Fiscal Year 2014 
 

CITY OF GUSTAVUS, ALASKA 

Ordinance No. FY14-14NCO 

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF GUSTAVUS PROVIDING FOR THE AMENDMENT OF 
THE MARINE FACILITIES BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GUSTAVUS CITY COUNCIL AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Classification. This is a Non-Code Ordinance 

Section 2. For the Fiscal Year of 2014 estimated expenditures have changed from the 
estimates in the approved budget 

Section 3.  For the current fiscal year the budget is amended to reflect the changed 
estimates as follows: 

Budget Category     Amounts 

     Original Budget    Amended Budget Change 

EXPENSE 

Encumbered Committee Funds $17,329.00  $0.00   <$17,329.00>  

Transferred to MFC AMLIP account 

Payroll    $23,000.00  $0.00   <$23,000.00>  

Transferred to MFC AMLIP account 

 
Total Change in Expense                  <$40,329.00> 

CITY HELD ACCOUNT 

AMLIP – Marine Facilities   $ 25,542.77  $ 65,871.77  $40,329.00  

Transferred to MFC AMLIP account 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

  

 
Total Change in AMLIP Marine Facilities account              $40,329.00 

Section 4. The budget is hereby amended as indicated and any portion of the approved 
budget inconsistent with this amendment is repealed. 

Section 5. Effective Date.  This ordinance becomes effective upon its adoption by the 
Gustavus City Council. 

DATE INTRODUCED: March 10, 2014 

DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING: April 14, 2014 

  

PASSED and APPROVED by the Gustavus City Council this _____ day of ___________, 2014. 

 

 

_________________________________________  ______________________________________        
Sandi Marchbanks, Mayor     Attest: Noël Farevaag, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

D. FY14-15 An Ordinance for the City of Gustavus Adopting a Major 
Revision for Title 4.17 Contracts and Purchasing 
 

CITY OF GUSTAVUS, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE FY14-15 

 

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF GUSTAVUS ADOPTING A MAJOR REVISION FOR 
TITLE 4.17 CONTRACTS AND PURCHASING 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GUSTAVUS CITY COUNCIL AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. Classification   This ordinance is of general and permanent nature and shall 
become a part of the City of Gustavus Municipal Code. 

Section 2. Severability   If any section or subsection of this title is determined to be illegal 
or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall not be affected, but remain 
valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.  

Section 3. Enactment   Now therefore, be it enacted by the Gustavus City Council that this 
major revision of Title 4.17 as follows: Strikethroughs are deleted, Bold, 
italicized words are adopted. 

 
Chapter 4.17 

Contracts and Purchasing 
Sections: 
 4.17.005 General 
 4.17.010 Definitions 
 4.17.020 Purchasing Agent Authority 
 4.17.030 Purchases  
 4.17.040 Competitive Bidding Required 
         4.17.050 Exceptions to Competitive Bid Requirements 
 4.17.060 Bid Invitation 
 4.17.070 Bid Deposits 
 4.17.080 Pre-Bid Conference 
 4.17.090 Changes and Addenda’s 
 4.17.100 Bids – No Response 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 4.17.110 Bid Submittal and Opening 
 4.17.120 Rejection of Bids 
 4.17.130 Award of Contract 
 4.17.140 Contractor Bonding 
 4.17.150 Professional Service Contracts 
 4.17.160 Construction Contracts – Letting 
 4.17.170 Construction Contracts – Administration 
 4.17.180 Disbursement Set-offs 
 4.17.190 Local Preference 
 
Section 4.17.005  General 
 All contracts, except as otherwise provided in 4.17.020, shall be authorized by 
the Council and shall be signed on behalf of the City of Gustavus by the Mayor and 
the City Clerk/Treasurer, after having been approved as to form by the City Attorney. 
 
Section 4.17.010  Definitions 
 City: City of Gustavus 
 
 Competitive Contract: consideration of more than one source, as may be 
evidenced by competitive requests for proposals, to insure full and free competition 
consistent with the types of services required and necessary to meet the needs of the 
City. Also known as competitive bid. 
 
 Construction: the on-site erection, alternation, extension or repair of 
improvements to real property or other improvements under contract or owned by the 
City. 
 
 Contract: an agreement for the purchase, lease or disposal of personal and real 
property, professional services, services and construction. 
 
 Contract Amendment: any change in the terms of the contract accomplished by 
agreement of both parties, including change orders. 
 
 Emergency Purchases: a requirement which arises from a situation where a 
threat to public health, welfare or safety such as may arise by reason of flood, 
epidemics, riots, equipment failure, earthquake, or tidal wave, or such other reason 
may be proclaimed by the Mayor or his/her delegate. The existence of such condition 
creates an immediate and serious need for supplies, services or construction that 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

cannot be met through normal public bidding methods and the lack of which would 
seriously threaten (a) the health or safety of any person, (b) the protection of property. 
 
 Invitation to Bid: The complete assembly of a bid package or related documents 
(whether attached or incorporated by reference) that is furnished prospective bidders 
for the purpose of bidding. The notice to bidders is a means of publicizing the 
invitation for bids. 
 
 Personal Property: everything that is subject to ownership (by the City) not 
coming under the denomination of real estate, normally being movable. 
 
 Professional Services: those advisory, consulting, architectural, engineering, 
research or developmental services which involve the exercise of discretion and 
independent judgment together with an advanced, or specialized knowledge, 
expertise or having good by formal studies or experience. 
  
 Project Manager: The Mayor, the departmental head or a person approved by 
the Council. The minutes of the Council meeting relating to the matter may be used 
as written consent by the Council.  
 
 Purchasing Agent: The Mayor or the Mayor’s designee. The Mayor may 
designate the City Clerk/Treasurer to be the City purchasing agent. 
 
Section 4.17.020  Limitation on Purchasing Agent’s Authority 
 
a. The Mayor is the purchasing agent for the City. The Mayor may designate the City 
Clerk or another designee to be the City purchasing agent. 
 
a. The purchasing agent or his/her designee may carry out any of the following: 
 1. Contract for, purchase or issue purchase authorizations for all supplies, 
materials, equipment, and services for the offices, departments and committees of the 
City; 
 2. Contract for the construction, repair, or improvements of City facilities. 
 
b. The purchasing agent may purchase personal property only as authorized by the 
Council and upon competitive bids, except as follows: 
 1. Budgeted personal property or professional services in the amount of five 
thousand dollars ($5,000.00) or less. 2,500.00 or less without council approval, or 
competitive bid shall make all purchases of supplies, materials, equipment and contractual 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

services needed by the committees, departments, and agencies of the City government in 
accordance with the ordinances of the City. 
 
c. The purchasing agent shall recommend joint purchases with other units of 
government when the best interest of the City would be served. 
 
 3. All purchase of supplies and contractual services of less than five thousand 
dollars ($5,000.00) shall be made on the open market, without observing the procedure 
prescribed in Section 4.16.030 through Section 4.16.080.  
 
Section 4.17.030  Purchases 
a. All Every contract for Purchases of supplies, materials, equipment and personal 
property or contractual services when the estimated cost exceeds five thousand dollars 
($5,000.00) for more than two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) will require the prior approval of 
the Council. If emergency expenditures are required, verbal permission must be given by the 
City Clerk/Treasurer and the Mayor.  
 
b. All supplies, equipment or contractual services for more than five thousand dollars 
($5,000.00) two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) personal property except as otherwise 
provided in this chapter, when the estimated costs thereof exceed ten thousand dollars 
($10,000.00) shall be purchased by formal, written contract from the lowest responsible 
bidder as defined in Section 4.17.100(c)  after due notice inviting proposals. 
 
b. All purchases of supplies and contractual services of less than five thousand dollars 
($5,000.00) shall be made on the open market, without observing the procedure prescribed 
in Section 4.16.030 through Section 4.16.080. 
 
Section 4.17.040  Bid Invitation 
Section 4.17.040  Competitive Contract 
a. All purchases of and contracts for supplies and contractual services in excess of 
$10,000, shall be based wherever possible on competitive bids, except as specifically 
provided in Section 4.17.050.this chapter  
 
b. When competitive bids are not deemed to be practical, a purchase or contract for 
supplies may be entered into if the Council certifies in writing by resolution that competitive 
bids are impractical, reciting the reasons therefore, and specifies how the purchase shall be 
made or the contract shall be entered into. 
 
Section 4.17.050  Bid Deposits 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Section 4.17.050  Exceptions to Competitive Contract Requirements 
 
Unless otherwise authorized by law, all procurement actions shall be by competitive 
bidding. The following is a list of authorized exceptions describing situations in 
which competitive bidding is not practicable: 
 
a. Negotiated procurement following unsuccessful efforts to obtain a qualified bid 
 through competitive bidding. 
b. Small procurement, below ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00). 
c.  Emergency procurement. 
d. Procurement of consultant, technical, real estate, architect, engineer or audit 
 services. 
e. Interagency agreements. 
f. Utilization of State or Local government contracts. 
g. Specialized equipment for enterprise funds where standardization is a primary 
 criteria. 
h. Sole-source procurement 
 1. Procurement resulting from competitive sealed proposals 
 2. Placement of insurance coverage 
 3. Contracts for electronic data processing and system control software and 
  hardware systems and other software systems shall be by professional  
  services contract; provided, however: 
  A. To be exempt from competitive bidding the service in    
   question must be truly a “system” which is     
   professionally designed. 
  B. The purchase of hardware which is not an inextricable   
   part of the system and can be bid separately shall be    
   competitively bid. 
  C. Software and systems readily available on the open    
   market (i.e. Windows 8) are not subject to this     
   exception. Competition will be sought to the maximum    
   extent practicable.  
 
Section 4.17.060  Pre-Bid Conference 
Section 4.17.060  Bid Invitation 
a. Purchases or contracts having an estimated value that does not exceed ten 
thousand dollars ($10,000.00) may be made in the open market without publishing 
notice in a newspaper and with such competition as is reasonable and practical in 
the circumstances. 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
b. All specifications for projects must be submitted to the Council for approval 
prior to the notice to bid being published. The budgeted amount shall accompany the 
request to the Council. 
 
c. A purchase or contract authorized by Section 4.17.020 having an estimated 
value that exceeds ten thousand ($10,000.00) but does not exceed twenty-five 
thousand ($25,000.00) shall be based on the solicitation of at least three competitive 
written bids and be awarded to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder as 
determined by Section 4. 17.130(c), and without observing the procedure prescribed 
for the award of formal sealed bids. 
 
d. The purchasing agent may establish and maintain a list of contractors who wish 
to provide goods and services to the City. Upon an invitation for bids, each contractor 
on the list with the necessary qualifications to bid shall receive a notice of the 
invitation. May also solicit bids from all responsible prospective suppliers and/or 
contractors who have indicated an interest in bidding on City contracts. 
 
e. Before bid invitations can be issued, the purchasing agent will write and have on file 
for public viewing the Council-approved bid specifications.  A tentative contract, approved by 
the Council, may also be available for public inspection. 
 
f. A notice inviting bids shall be posted at least ten (10) working days prior to the last 
day set for the receipt of proposals.  The notice will include a general description of the work, 
or materials or service, will a statement where bid forms and specifications may be secured, 
the closing time for submission of bids and the time and place of opening of bids.  Bid 
deposits, if they are required, will be prescribed in the public notices inviting the bids. 
 
Section 4.17.070  Changes and Addendas 
Section 4.17.070  Bid Deposits 
When deemed necessary by the Council, every person submitting a bid pursuant to 
competitive bidding procedures must accompany his bid with either a corporate 
surety bond from a surety company authorized to do business in Alaska or a certified 
or cashier’s cheque, drawn on a bank doing business in Alaska, in an amount as 
required in the notice and instructions to bidders.  



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
Section 4.17.080  Bid Submittal and Opening 
Section 4.17.080  Pre-Bid Conference 
The Council-approved project manager may provide for a pre-bid conference at least seven 
(7) working days prior to the time for submission of bids or upon request of any bidder.  All 
points of clarification and questions answered at the conference which may affect the bid, 
will be issued in the form of an addenda. 
 
Section 4.17.090  Rejection of Bids 
Section 4.17.090  Changes and Addenda’s 
No official or officer of the City shall make any oral interpretations that may affect the 
substance of the contract documents.  Addenda will be issued to all bidders when questions 
arise.  Addenda will be delivered via email which states, in part, that the bidder shall 
notify the City of receipt of addenda by email or by certified mail with a return receipt 
requested, or by hand delivery with a written receipt obtained.  When an addendum is issued 
less than four (4) working days before the time for receipt of bids, the addendum shall 
contain a new bid date of at least four (4) working days from the original receipt of bids date.  
Receipt of all addenda shall be acknowledged by bidder as part of the bid summary. 
 
Section 4.17.100  Award of Contract 
Section 4.17.100  Bids – No Response or Unsatisfactory Bid 
If, after opportunity for competitive bidding, no bids are received or bids received are 
not satisfactory to the Council, the Council may authorize the project manager to 
negotiate for a contract in the open market. 
 
Section 4.17.110  Contractor Bonding 
Section 4.17.110  Bid Submittal and Opening 
The bid opening date shall be scheduled by the manager of the project, after the 
appropriate notice thereof of not less than two (2) weeks. 
 
a. Bids will be submitted personally or by mail to the City Clerk/Treasurer, designated 
in the notice inviting bids, and identified on the outside of the sealed envelope with a 
printed sticker provided by City as stated in RFQ or RFP documentation. 
 
b. If the Council requires that potential bidders show evidence of meeting certain 
requirements, the City Clerk/Treasurer shall determine the qualification of bidders 
before any bids are solicited. The City Clerk/Treasurer shall determine whether a 
bidder is qualified, responsive and responsible on the basis of the following criteria: 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 1. The skill and experience demonstrated by the potential bidder in 
performing contracts of a similar nature; 
 2. The potential bidder’s record of honesty and integrity; 
 3. The potential bidder’s capacity to perform in terms of facilities, 
personnel and financing; 
 4. The potential bidder’s past performance under City contract, if 
applicable. If the bidder failed in any material way to perform its obligations under 
any contract with the City, the bidder may be deemed a non-responsible bidder. 
 
At all times, the best interests of the City shall be recognized in awarding bids. 
 
bc. Bids will be opened in public by the City Clerk/Treasurer designated at the time and 
place so stated in the public notice. That opening will follow immediately after the closing 
time for submission of the bids.  Bids shall be opened so as to avoid disclosing their 
contents to competing proponents. Any bidder is welcome to attend the opening. 
Proposals, tabulations, and evaluations thereof shall be open to public inspection 
only after the contract award. 
 
d. At the time the bids are opened, the project manager and the City 
Clerk/Treasurer shall review all bids for irregularities, errors and exceptions. If it 
appears that minor irregularities or errors were made through inadvertence, the City 
Clerk/Treasurer may authorize the bidder to make changes, or may waive the errors 
and irregularities. In the event of major errors and irregularities, the bid shall be 
rejected and the bid price not disclosed. Bid bonds and certified or cashier’s cheques 
shall be checked for adequacy. 
 
ce. A tabulation of all bids received will be forwarded to the City Council by the City 
Clerk/Treasurer with the appropriate recommendations for acceptance or rejection of bids.  
A copy of the tabulation may be furnished to each bidder, if bidder so requests. 
 
Section 4.17.120  Professional Services Contract 
Section 4.17.120  Rejection of Bids 
 
a.  The Council may consider a bidder “not responsible” and reject the bid of a 
bidder who is in arrears on taxes, permits, special assessments and/or any other 
monies that may be due the City or who failed to perform on a previous contract with 
the City.  



 
ab. The Council shall have the authority to reject all bids or parts of bids or to 
negotiate when it is in the best interest of the City. 
 
bc. If the lowest and best bid exceeds the budgeted amount and the City Council 
does not make additional funds available, the proposed contract for purchase or sale 
for services or for construction projects may be modified in any manner the Council 
deems appropriate. 
 
cd. The Council may re-advertise the project for bidding, after making changes in 
the project plans.  
 
de. If the Council rejects all bids under this section, it may later direct the 
purchasing agent to issue an identical or similar invitation for bids. 
 
e. All open market purchases or sales will, whenever possible, be based on at least 
three (3) competitive bids and will be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder. 
 
f. The City Clerk/Treasurer will keep a record of all open market bids submitted 
for competition and such records will be open to public inspection. 

 
Section 4.17.130  Construction Contracts - Letting 
Section 4.17.130  Award of Contract 
 
The Council may award contracts within the purview of this chapter. In most 
instances, the project manager will be in a position to make known his/her 
recommendations at the conclusion of the bid opening. The project manager 
will furnish each bidder with a copy of his tabulation of the bids and the name 
of the apparent low bidder after review, if required. 
 
ba. Contracts shall be awarded, if at all, to the lowest responsible bidder whose bid 
is responsive to the invitation for bids. The amount of the bid shall not exceed the 
project manager’s estimate by more than ten percent (10%). 
 
cb. In determining which bid is “lowest” the Council may at its discretion apply the 
local contractor preference of Section 4.17.190.4.16.160 
 
dc. In determining whether the lowest bidder is “responsible” the Council shall 
consider: 

 
 1. The Price; 
 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 2. The experience, capacity, and skill of the bidder to perform the contract 
within the time and amount desired; 

 2. Whether the bidder can perform the contract within the time specified, without 
delay of interference; 

 3. The potential bidder’s quality of reputation,and performance, honesty and 
integrity shown in the commission of previous City contracts; 

 4. The previous and existing compliance by the bidder with laws and ordinances 
relating to the contract and the City of Gustavus; 

 5. The sufficiency of the financial resources and ability of the bidder to perform 
the contract. 

 
ed. When the award is given to other than the lowest bidder, a full and complete written 
statement of reasons will be delivered to the unsuccessful low bidder or bidders and filed 
with the other papers relating to the transaction.  The minutes of the City Council meeting 
relating to the matter may be used as the required written statement. 
 
fe. If any bidder awarded a contract with the City of Gustavus fails to enter into the 
contract for the exact thing called for in the Invitation To Bid within fourteen (14) working 
days, he/she shall forfeit his bond or cheque, if required. 
 
f. Any bidder who is not awarded a contract shall have his bid bond returned or 
his cheque refunded, if required. 
 
h.g. At the Council’s discretion, bidders may be required (with sufficient notice) to appear 
before the Council, in person or by telephone to answer questions concerning contracts. 
 
Section 4,17.140  Construction Contracts - Administration 
Section 4.17.140  Contractor Bonding 
 
Contracts for construction, alteration or repair of public buildings or public works, where the 
cost is in excess of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00), shall be awarded only after 
the contractor has provided payment and performance bonds pursuant to A.S.36.25.010(a). 
 
a. Each bid shall be accompanied by a Bid Bond consisting of a certified or 
cashier’s cheque payable to the City for a sum not less than five percent (5%) of the 
amount of the bid or accompanied by a bid bond in an amount not less than five 
percent (5%) of the bid with a corporate surety licensed to do business in the State of 
Alaska. Cheques and Bid Bonds will be returned to unsuccessful bidders. 
 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

b. The successful bidder is required to submit a Performance Bond and a Payment 
Bond with a Surety meeting the standards of AS 36.25.010(a) and satisfactory to the 
City. The amount of the Performance Bond and the amount of the Payment Bond shall 
be equal to the contract amount. 
 
c. If the bidder fails to enter into the contract and furnish the Performance Bond 
and Payment Bond within fourteen (14) working days from the date on which the 
bidder is notified of being the successful bidder, the Bid Bond or check and the 
amount thereof shall be forfeited to the City. 
 
d. The Mayor may wholly or partially exempt contractors from the Performance 
Bond and Payment Bond requirements for contracts not exceeding one hundred 
thousand dollars ($100,000.00), with the approval of the Council. Any exemption 
shall be stated in the bid documents. When the exemption is given, the Mayor may do 
any one or more of the following, which shall be set forth in the bid documents: 
  
 1. Not require any Payment Bond or Performance Bond; 
 2. Accept cash, certified cheque, bank cheque, letter of credit, guaranty, or  
  other form of security (not including any interest in real property), as a  
  Payment Bond or Performance Bond in lieu of sureties meeting the   
  standards of AS 36.25.010(a). 
 3. Accept a Surety Payment Bond or Performance Bond in an amount less  
  than that set forth in paragraph b above; 
 4. Require the contractor to meet the following criteria; 
  A. For two years immediately preceding the award of the    
   contract, the contractor has been a licensed contractor   
   having his principal office in the state; 
  B. The contractor certifies that he has not defaulted on a   
   contract awarded him during the period of three (3)    
   years preceding the award of the contract for which    
   the bid is submitted; 
  C. The contractor has submitted financial statements,    
   prepared within a period of nine (9) months preceding    
   the submission of a bid for the contract,      
   demonstrating that the contractor has a net worth of    
   not less than seventy—five percent (75%) of the amount   
   of the contract for which a bid is submitted. 
   
 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Section 4.17.150  Disbursement Set-Offs 
Section 4.17.150  Professional Services Contracts 
 
a. A contract for consultant, technical, real estate, engineering, architectural, legal, 
medical, or other professional services shall not be binding and effective until it has been 
approved by the Council.   
 
b. Contracts in amounts exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) fur such services 
and other contractual services, which are in their nature unique and not subject to 
competition, shall be awarded by the Council. 
 
b.  The selection of professional assistance shall be based on competence, skill and 
experience. The Council City shall not award a contract to an individual, a partnership, or a 
corporation that is not registered, not qualified, or not authorized under Alaska Statutes.  
 
c. No contract shall be subdivided to avoid the requirements of this section. 
 
d. Professional services contracts may be renewed per City of Gustavus Ordinance 
4.01.010 City Obligations. 
 
Section 4.17.160  Local Preference 
Section 4.17.160  Construction Contracts – Letting 
 
a. For the purpose of this section “contract” means and includes construction contracts.  
The term shall not include professional services as listed in Section 4.17.150(a) and other 
contractual services which are in their nature unique and not subject to competition. 
 
b. All contracts shall be based whenever possible on competitive bids. 
 
c. All contracts shall be awarded by formal, written contract to the lowest responsible 
bidder as defined in Section 4.17.130(c) 4.16.100 after due notice inviting proposals 
following procedures established in Section 4.17.060. 4.16.040 
 
d. Upon awarding a construction contract the City Clerk/Treasurer shall: 
 
 1. Immediately notify the State Commissioner of Labor of the amount of the 
contract, the identity of the contractor and all subcontractors, the site or sites of 
construction and provide a project description; and   
 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 2. Verify that the bonding requirements of AS 36.25 have been met and that the 
requirements of AS 08.18 have been met. 
 
Section 4.17.140 
Section 4.17.170  Construction Contracts – Administration 
 
All contracts, as defined in Section 4.17.140 4.17.130 shall be administered by the Mayor 
and a designated and qualified Council member, in consultation with the Council-
approved project manager, or professional managers, if deemed necessary, in accordance 
with the following provisions: 
 
a. Any change required in the work shall be made after receiving a written change order 
proposal from the contractor for additions to or deduction from the original contract sum and 
the original contract time for changes proposed. 
 
b. Upon receipt of a change order proposal for a change in the contract sum in the 
amount not exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) and after determination that the 
contractor’s proposal is reasonable, the City Clerk/Treasurer, at the direction of the Council, 
may issue a written change order.  The aggregate sum of change orders so authorized shall 
not exceed five percent (5%) of the original contract sum or one five thousand dollars 
($5,000.00) of the original contract sum. 
 
c. Whenever a change in the work is required immediately upon the discovery of 
unforeseen conditions, the Mayor shall have the power to order such change.  If the change 
is otherwise subject to subsection (b) of this section, a full report shall be made to the 
Council within one week.   
 
d. No payment for work completed shall be made to a contractor for the quantities and 
values submitted by the contractor without: 
 1.  Approval of the Council, or 
 2. Pre-approval by the Council giving the Mayor authority of approval.  
 
e. Council will be notified of contract completion including the following information: 
 1. Contract completion date 
 2. Scope of work completed 
 3. Total cost of contract. 
 
Section 4.17.180  Disbursement Set-Offs 
 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

a. Disbursement of monies to a person, firm or corporation will be made only after the 
various receivable accounts of the City have been reviewed for outstanding balances owed.  
The disbursement will be reduced by setting off the amount of indebtedness due to the City 
from such person, firm or corporation. 
 
b. All contracts to which the City is a party that will or may involve the disbursement of 
City funds shall contain the following clause or its substantial equivalent: 
 
 “Disbursement of monies by the City of Gustavus hereunder shall be subject to set-off 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 4.17.180 4.16.150 of the Code of Ordinances.” 
 
Section 4.17.190  Local Preference 
 
The Council may include local preference criteria for contracts, to be included in the bid 
announcement.   The local preference would go to a responsible bidder who maintains an 
office within the City of Gustavus, if that bid does not exceed the lowest responsible bid by 
more than five percent (5%).  
 
Date Introduced: March 10, 2014 
Date of Public Hearing: April 14, 2014 
 
PASSED and APPROVED by the Gustavus City Council this _____ day of ___________, 2014. 
 
______________________________________  __________________________________ 
Sandi Marchbanks, Mayor    Noël Farevaag, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



F. FY14-17 An Ordinance for the City of Gustavus Providing for 
the Amendment of City Ordinance 6.01 Gustavus Public Library 
 

CITY OF GUSTAVUS 
 

ORDINANCE NO. FY14-17 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF GUSTAVUS PROVIDING FOR THE 
AMENDMENT OF CITY ORDINANCE 6.01 GUSTAVUS PUBLIC LIBRARY 

 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE GUSTAVUS CITY COUNCIL AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. Classification. This ordinance is of general and permanent nature and 
shall become a part of the City of Gustavus Municipal Code. 
 
Section 2. Severability. If any provisions of this ordinance or any application thereof 
to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and its 
application to other persons, or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 
 
Section 3. Enactment. Now therefore, it is enacted by the Gustavus City Council 
that Title 6.01 Gustavus Public Library be amended as follows: Bold and italicized 
items are additions. Strikethroughs are deletions.  
 

Chapter 6.01 
Gustavus Public Library 

 
Sections:  
Section 6.01.010 Library established. 
Section 6.01.020 Management. 
Section 6.01.030 Library board. 
Section 6.01.040 Staff Librarian. 
Section 6.01.050 Statement of library policy. 
Section 6.01.060 Use of the library. 
Section 6.01.070 Failure to return library property. 
 
Section 6.01.010 Library established. 
There shall be a library in and for the City of Gustavus known as the Gustavus Public 
Library.  
 
Section 6.01.020 Management. 
The City Council of the City of Gustavus shall have overall authority over and 
responsibility for of the library.  
 
Section 6.01.030 Library Board. 
(a) There is created a library board, appointed by the city council, that shall 
support the Librarian(s) in the govern the  operation of the library. Board members 
may be members of the city council. The board shall consist of three (3) to five (5) 
members.  



 
(b) The library board chairperson shall be included on the selection 
committee for a librarian job opening. 
 
(b) The library board shall set policy for the operation of the library and policies are 
otherwise effective,  assist the City Librarians to set policy for the operation of the 
library unless specifically objected to by the city council.  
(c) The library board and the librarian shall submit  shall support the staff as 
needed in creating an annual budget to submit to the city council for the operation of 
the library.  
(d) The library board shall make recommendations to the mayor on the 
appointment of library staff.  
(e) The library board shall provide for the acceptance of gifts, endowments, grants 
and donations to the library.  
 
Section 6.01.040 Librarian. Staff. 
The librarians, one administrative and one public relations, under the supervision 
of the mayor and with direction  support from the library board, shall direct the 
services and perform all administrative tasks necessary for efficient and economical 
operation of the library.  
 
Section 6.01.050 Statement of library policy. 
(a) The library shall be operated in conformance with applicable federal and state 
laws and regulations including but not limited to:  
 (1) AS 09.25.140, Confidentiality of Library Records. 
 (2) AS 14.56.030, State Library Programs. 
 (3) 4 AAC 57.020-33, Annual Report Library Operations.  
(b) The City of Gustavus adopts the American Library Association Library Bill of 
Rights and Freedom to Read. These documents will be maintained for reference in the 
Gustavus Public Library.  
 
Section 6.01.060 Use of the library. 
(a) All persons shall be extended the privilege of using the library, subject to Policy 
on Rules of Conduct - Exclusion, as amended, observing rules established for using 
the library.  
(b) The A librarian, or librarian designee, or person in authority may prohibit 
any person from using the library who willfully or persistently violates any rule or 
whose physical condition demeanor is deemed dangerous or offensive to other 
persons, as described in Policy on Rules of Conduct - Exclusion.  
 
Section 6.01.070 Failure to return library property. 
(a) No person shall willfully keep any library materials for more than thirty (30) 
days after overdue notification has been sent to the last known address.  
(ba) The board librarians shall set and fix any overdue fees and materials 
replacement charges and may suspend library privileges for delinquent or non-
returned library materials.  
(cb) Any person who, after notice is provided under Section 6.01.060(a) does not 
return library material for sixty (60) days, shall be billed for the full replacement cost 
of the material(s) plus administrative fees and shall be subject to suspension of library 
privileges.  



 
Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance becomes effective upon its adoption by the 
Gustavus City Council. 
 
Date Introduced: February 10, 2014 
Date Reintroduced: March 10, 2014 
Date of Public Hearing: April 14, 2014 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the Gustavus City Council this ____ day of _______, 
2014. 
 
 
________________________________   
Sandi Marchbanks, Mayor     
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Noël Farevaag, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Item No. 10  Resolutions 
A. 2014-17 A Resolution by the Gustavus City Council By-Passing 
the Competitive Bid Process at the request of the Gustavus Road 
Maintenance Committee  
 

CITY OF GUSTAVUS, ALASKA 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-17 

A RESOLUTION BY THE GUSTAVUS CITY COUNCIL BY-PASSING THE 
COMPETITIVE BID PROCESS AT THE REQUEST OF THE GUSTAVUS ROAD 

MAINTENANCE COMMITTEE 

WHEREAS, the Gustavus Road Maintenance Committee seeks a solution to the 
winter condition of Gustavus roads and presently of Chinook road, and 

WHEREAS, after many months of research, the Road Maintenance Committee 
asks to conduct an experiment on Chinook by asphalting this heavily-utilized 
road, as a basis for further study by the Road Maintenance Committee, to provide 
important information if in the future, the Road Maintenance Committee decides 
to ask the City Council to initiate the process of hiring a Project Manager to 
develop an overall plan for the roads in Gustavus, and  

WHEREAS, Gustavus (Main) Road and Mountain View Road will receive an 
overlayment of asphalt in the spring of 2014 by Secon, an Alaskan-based 
construction company through funding by Alaska DOT/PF, and 

WHEREAS, the Road Maintenance Committee has deemed the competitive bid 
process to be impractical because Secon will be working in Gustavus in the 
spring of 2014, and will have the material necessary to overlay a short section of 
the road without excessive cost to the City, and 

WHEREAS, the cost for the overlay of asphalt for the section of Chinook from 
Mountain View Road east approximately two hundred sixty (260) feet will cost 
$16,000.00, an amount available in the FY14 road maintenance budget, and now 
therefore be it 

 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

RESOLVED, The Gustavus City Council agrees that competitive bids would be 
impractical in this particular case and approves the use of road maintenance 
funds from the FY14 budget to pay for said asphalt paving. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Gustavus City Council this ____ day of 

______________________, 2014. 

 

_________________________________                     _________________________________ 

 Sandi Marchbanks, Mayor                              Noel Farevaag, City Clerk/Treasurer    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

B. 2014-18 A Resolution Certifying the Annual Financial Statement 
of Revenues and Authorized Expenditures for the Year Ending June 
30, 2013.   

 

CITY OF GUSTAVUS, ALASKA 

RESOLUTION 2014-18 

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE ANNUAL CERTIFIED FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF 
REVENUES AND AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2013 

WHEREAS, The City of Gustavus, is a recognized second class city; and 

WHEREAS, second class cities are required by AS 29.20.640 (a)(2) to submit a Certified 
Financial Statement of Income and Expenditures or Audit for the year ending June 30, 2013, 
to the Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development; and now therefore 
be it  

RESOLVED that the attached CERTIFIED FINANCIAL STATEMENT of Gustavus, Alaska for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013, and prepared by Noël Farevaag, City Clerk/Treasurer, 
is true and complete to the best of our knowledge. 

 

PASSED and APPROVED by the Gustavus City Council, this 14th day of April 2014. 

 

_______________________________________  _____________________________________________ 

Sandi Marchbanks, Mayor    Attest: Noël Farevaag, City Clerk/Treasurer 

 

 

 

 

Attachment: FY13 Certified Financial Statement, prepared 04/07/2014 (SEE NEXT PAGE) 



Jul '12 - Jun 13 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Community Revenue Sharing 167,797.00 167,552.00 245.00 100.1%
Dividend 2,261.41
Donations 1,172.00 1,000.00 172.00 117.2%
DRC Income 67,643.25 63,792.00 3,851.25 106.0%
Encumbered Comm. Funds 5,000.00 110,100.00 -105,100.00 4.5%
Facilities Usage Fees 0.00 7,500.00 -7,500.00 0.0%
Fundraising 6,028.08 8,144.00 -2,115.92 74.0%
GCN Income 34,014.66 43,491.00 -9,476.34 78.2%
Interest Income 280.98 630.00 -349.02 44.6%
Investment Income 5,730.92
Lands Income 17,430.00 20,000.00 -2,570.00 87.2%
Lease Income 11,965.84 10,289.00 1,676.84 116.3%
Library Income 1,303.00 1,350.00 -47.00 96.5%
Marine Facilities Income 17,725.00
National Forest Receipts 118,471.20
Payment In Lieu of Taxes 84,591.52 75,000.00 9,591.52 112.8%
Sales Tax Income 376,706.50 302,580.00 74,126.50 124.5%
Shared Fisheries Business Tax 3,834.42 400.00 3,434.42 958.6%

Total Income 921,955.78 811,828.00 110,127.78 113.6%

Gross Profit 921,955.78 811,828.00 110,127.78 113.6%

Expense
Administrative Costs 154.78
Advertising 1,861.41 3,000.00 -1,138.59 62.0%
Audit 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Bank Charges 2,352.69 2,811.00 -458.31 83.7%
Building 9,678.50
Contractual Services 25,177.71 93,241.00 -68,063.29 27.0%
Dues/Fees 3,559.32 4,270.00 -710.68 83.4%
Equipment 9,524.41 23,460.00 -13,935.59 40.6%
Freight 13,628.94 14,000.00 -371.06 97.3%
Fundraising Expenses 4,538.29 6,650.00 -2,111.71 68.2%
GVA 18,000.00 18,000.00 0.00 100.0%
Library Materials 4,890.73 5,281.00 -390.27 92.6%
Maintenance & Repairs 8,175.03 13,190.00 -5,014.97 62.0%
Payroll Expenses 266,961.34 297,347.00 -30,385.66 89.8%
Postage & Shipping 996.58 3,119.00 -2,122.42 32.0%
Professional Services 213,624.95 86,750.00 126,874.95 246.3%
Public Sanitation 2,025.00 0.00 2,025.00 100.0%
Road Maintenance 63,051.66 105,000.00 -41,948.34 60.0%
Supplies - EMS 12,228.41 20,000.00 -7,771.59 61.1%
Supplies - Fire 1,481.58 3,000.00 -1,518.42 49.4%
Supplies - General 8,674.27 10,450.00 -1,775.73 83.0%
Supplies - Office 2,940.94 4,350.00 -1,409.06 67.6%
Supplies - Summer Reading 51.21
Telephone, Internet, Broadband 32,127.82 31,417.00 710.82 102.3%
Training 9,973.30 18,570.00 -8,596.70 53.7%
Travel 10,381.01 10,620.00 -238.99 97.7%
Utilities 21,165.07 25,800.00 -4,634.93 82.0%
Vehicle 6,537.21

Total Expense 753,762.16 800,326.00 -46,563.84 94.2%

Net Ordinary Income 168,193.62 11,502.00 156,691.62 1,462.3%

Net Income 168,193.62 11,502.00 156,691.62 1,462.3%

10:06 AM City of Gustavus FY13 Certified Financial Statement
04/08/14 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Cash Basis July 2012 through June 2013

Page 1



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Item No. 14. New Business 

A. Approve Invitation to Bid- Mountain View Drainage Fish Passage 
Improvement Project- Spruce Lane Bridge 

 
[Due to the Large Size of this document, it will be available at the 
City Council Meeting for Council/Public use. Copies also available 

upon request.] 

 


	Chapter 4.17
	Section 4.17.040  Bid Invitation
	Section 4.17.040  Competitive Contract
	Section 4.17.060  Pre-Bid Conference
	Section 4.17.060  Bid Invitation
	Section 4.17.070  Changes and Addendas Section 4.17.070  Bid Deposits
	Section 4.17.080  Bid Submittal and Opening
	Section 4.17.080  Pre-Bid Conference
	Section 4.17.110  Contractor Bonding
	Section 4.17.110  Bid Submittal and Opening
	Section 4.17.130  Construction Contracts - Letting
	Section 4.17.130  Award of Contract
	Section 4.17.150  Disbursement Set-Offs
	Section 4.17.150  Professional Services Contracts
	Section 4.17.190  Local Preference
	2014-04-14 Agenda in Progress.pdf
	Gustavus CITY COUNCIL
	General Meeting
	April 14th, 2014
	7:00 P.M. City Hall
	Gustavus CITY COUNCIL
	General Meeting
	April 14th, 2014
	7:00 P.M. City Hall

	insert.pdf
	Chapter 4.17
	Section 4.17.040  Bid Invitation
	Section 4.17.040  Competitive Contract
	Section 4.17.060  Pre-Bid Conference
	Section 4.17.060  Bid Invitation
	Section 4.17.070  Changes and Addendas Section 4.17.070  Bid Deposits
	Section 4.17.080  Bid Submittal and Opening
	Section 4.17.080  Pre-Bid Conference
	Section 4.17.110  Contractor Bonding
	Section 4.17.110  Bid Submittal and Opening
	Section 4.17.130  Construction Contracts - Letting
	Section 4.17.130  Award of Contract
	Section 4.17.150  Disbursement Set-Offs
	Section 4.17.150  Professional Services Contracts
	Section 4.17.190  Local Preference

	insert.pdf
	Section 4.17.130  Construction Contracts - Letting
	Section 4.17.130  Award of Contract

	insert.pdf
	Section 4.17.130  Construction Contracts - Letting
	Section 4.17.130  Award of Contract




